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INTRODUCTION

The Federal Trade Commission (tTTC'') respectfully requests that the Court immediately

stop a telemarketing scam that takes advantage of financially distressed consumers who are

struggling to manage high credit card debt.l ln this scheme
, Defendants have placed hundreds of

thousands of illegal telemarketing calls - most of which start with illegal prerecorded

tt b 11s''2 - to consumers all across the country to sell phony credit-card interest rate reductionro oca

services. W hen consumers press :çl '' on their phones to speak to a live representative
, consum ers

are connected to one of Defendants' telemarketers who ççguarantees'' that
, in exchange for an up-

front fee ranging âom $495 to $1,595, Defendants can save them thousands of dollars and help

them get out of debt faster by substantially reducing the interest rates on their credit cards to

extraordinarily low rates such as 6% or even 0% . Defendants' program
, however, is nothing

more than a dead end for consumers in tinancial distress because Defendants rarely, if ever, are

able to deliver the interest rate reductions they promise to consumers who pay their fee. This is



that falls far short of the significantly low interest rates Defendants guarantee in their calls. ln

short, most consumers who pay Defendants' hefty up-front fee end up with little to show for it
,

as they save little to no money, are unable to get out of debt any faster
, and do not receive the

lowered credit card interest rates Defendants promised them. Defendants' practices, which are

3 i latenearly identical to those that have been the subject of previous FTC enforcement actions, v o

Section 5(a) of the Federal Trade Commission Act (ETTC Act''), 15 U.S.C. j 45(a), which

prohibits deceptive acts or practices in or affecting commerce, as well as numerous provisions of

the FTC'S çTelemarketing Sales Rule'' (ûûTSR'') 16 C.F.R. . Part 3 l 0.

Because Defendants' conduct has injured numerous financially distressed consumers

across the country and continues to harm additional consumers on a daily basis, the FTC seeks

an cx parte temporary restraining order (tçTRO'') that will immediately halt Defendants'

deceptive and injurious practices and preserve assets for potential redress to consumer victims.

Specitkally, the FTC seeks an cx parte TRO that enjoins Defendants from continuing their

illegal practices and orders ancillary equitable relietl including'. an asset freeze; the appointment

of a temporary receiver', immediate access to relevant business premises and records'
, limited

expedited discovery; and an order to show cause why a preliminary injunction should not issue.

These measures are necessary to prevent continued consumer injury, dissipation of assets, and

3 S FTC v Direct Fin



destruction of evidence, thereby preserving this Court's ability to provide effective final relief to

the victims of Defendants' scheme.

Il. STATEM ENT OF FACTS

A. The Parties

The Federal Trade Commission

The FTC is an independent agency of the United States government created by statute.

15 U.S.C. j 41 et seq. The FTC enforces Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. j 45(a), which

prohibits unfair or deceptive acts or practices in or affecting commerce. The FTC also enforces

the Telemarketing Act, l 5 U.S.C. j 6101 et seq., and the TSR, 16 C.F.R. Part 310, which

prohibits deceptive or abusive telemarketing acts or practices. The FTC is authorized to initiate



technically have different addresses, the two locations are part of one contiguous oflke space

located in the same strip mall in Port Saint Lucie, Florida, and A+ has listed its mailing address .

(PX 4-7.)

Defendant Christopher L. M iano tHchris M ianoA') is the general manager of both A+

and Accelerated Accounting. (PX3-3 at DOACS 000194.) ln his role as general manager, Chris

M iano runs both A+ and Accelerated Accounting on a day-to-day basis including, among other

things: managing all employees; handling the finances of the business', and addressing

regulatory compliance with state authorities.(f#.) Chris Miano has signatory authority for bank

accounts held in A+'s and Accelerated Accounting's names (PX 2-3 at BOFA-000012- 13, 31 ,

34, 396-97, 413, 415, 505, 507, 793-94, 1383, 1385), has signed checks on behalf of A+ (PX 4-1

at WPBBB-000059, 64), and has signed responses submitted to the Better Business Bureau as

the ECGM'' of A+ (f#. at M BBB-000005, 56, 62, 69, 73, 76, 1 1 8, 122, 124, 130). Chris Miano is

also listed as the subscriber for the telephone numbers used by A+ and Accelerated Accounting.

(PX 2-4 at EARTHLINK 00000 1 .) Chris Miano is currently the sole Managing Member of



000007-9, 31, 34, 413, 415-16, 473-75, 507-08, 1383, 1385). Dana Miano is also listed as the

registrant and technical, billing, and administrative contact for A+'s website -

Bv,AyB'-ap I
-kl-s-ti-napc ialc ent-ç-rs-con).(PX 2-5 at G9004322.) ln addition, Dana Miano has

previously been the sole Managing Member of Accelerated Accounting. (PX 2-7 at FLSTATE

000017-18.)



Defendants Hide Their True Identitv.

Once connected to a live representative, Defendants take numerous steps to hide thek

true identity and trick consumers into thinking that they are actually the consumer's bank or

credit card company. For example, in most cases, Defendants' live representative tells the

consumer that he or she works for ûf ard Services,'' ûlFinancial Center,'' or some other generic

business name. (PX 1-3*, PX 1 - 1 1 ; PX 1- 12', PX 1-15,. PX 1-16.) ln fact, Defendants' internal



3. Defendants M ake Grandiose Guarantees and Collect an Up-Front Fee

From Consumers.

Afler gaining the consumer's trust by hiding their true identity, Defendants ask the

consumer to provide a variety of information regarding the consumer's existing credit card debt,

including how many credit cards the consumer has, the amount owed on each, and the interest

rate. (PX 1-2 to PX 1-16; PX 2- l , Attachment A6 to A7.) After receiving this information,

Defendants guarantee the consumer that:

Defendants will reduce the interest rates on aIl of the consumer's credit cards,

oûen quoting rates as 1ow as 6% or even 0% and often claiming that the lowered
rates will be permanent or will last for several years;

Defendants will reduce the interest rate on any credit card, regardless of the bank

that issued the card;

@ Defendants' services will save the consumer thousands of dollars of interest,

usually ranging between $1,200 to $4,000 in one year;

The consumer will be able to get out of debt three to five times faster with
Defendants' help; and

Defendants will not requke the consumer to close any of his or her existing credit

cards in order to obtain the lowered interest rates.

(PX 1-2 to PX 1-4) PX l-6 to 1-16; PX 2-1, Attachment A10 to A19.) Defendants tell the

consumer that all they need to qualify for Defendants' program is to have one credit card that is

in ttgood standing,'' which Defendants explain requires that the consumer be current on his or her

payments on the card and not be over the card's limit. (PX 1-2*, PX 1-3', PX 1-7., PX 2- 1,

Attachment A7; PX 3-3 at DOACS 000224.)

Afler making their grandiose guarantees, Defendants typically ask the consumer to

provide his or her credit card number, expiration date, the bank's toll-free number on the back of

the card, the last four digits of the consumer's social security number, and/or the consumer's zip

code so that Defendants can detenuine whether the consumer Eçqualifies'' or ldis eligible'' for one
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of the ûûfew remaining spots'' in A+'s credit card interest rate reduction program. (PX 1-2*, PX 1-

3; PX l -7; PX 1-8; PX 1-10 to PX 1- l 2; PX l - 14 to PX 1- l6; PX 2- 1, Attachment A7 to A10.)

Defendants then place the consumer on hold and call the bank that issued the consumer's credit

card to determine: (a) whether the consumer's credit card is in good standing (i.e., the account is



savings consumers will receive through the significantly reduced interest rates Defendants will

obtain for the consumer. (PX I -2', PX 1-3., PX 1-7*, PX 1- l 0 to PX 1- 12; PX l - 14 to PX 1 - 16.)

Defendants further explain that if the consumer does not receive the guaranteed savings within

one year as a result of lowered credit card interest rates obtained by Defendants, the consumer

will receive a full refund of Defendants' fee. (PX 1-2; PX 1-3; PX 1-7,. PX 1-l l ; PX 1-16.)

Two recent calls between Defendants and an FTC investigator posing as a consumer

seeking a lower interest rates on a Citi credit card illustrate the typical representations

Defendants make to consumers during their telemarketing calls. During the flrst call
, the FTC



(PX 2- l , Attachment Al 1 to A12, A14 to Al6.) Aûer signing up for Defendants' services, the

same FTC investigator called Defendants about one month later and requested a refund. The

investigator spoke to a telemarketer named Richard M atthews, who made the following

representations in an effort to talk the FTC investigator out of the refund request:

M R. M ATTHEW S: Okay. lt looks like you only had one account
. . . which showed about $1 1,200 and that is a Citi Visa and you're
paying that offat 21 percent. I do want to make sure, before we

process (the refund requestl, that you understand exactly what you
would be turning down. I mean, you have been approved for a rate

reduction at zero percent. Keep in mind that that is a fixed rate.

So, it's not as itl you know, you'd have zero percent for a year and
then go back to 2 1 percent. That would be zero percent not only

for the current balance of $1 1,200, but also for your future
purchases as well.

So, just to kind of put that in hindsight for you, that means with our
charge -- l've got $1 1,200, now you're at about $12,000. Your

payment before, just correct me if I'm wrong, at 20 percent, that
means the minimum payment they are sending you on each

statement was going to be (roughlyl $308 a month . . . .

But due to the fact that you now have a rate of zero percent, your

new minimum payment would be $120 for your next billing cycle.
So, what you should actually be saving every month would be

$188 in interest over the course of one year. That is a savings of
$2,256. . . .



$795) charge. You're on a 30-day grace period. And like l said,
by your next billing statement, you will see the savings

im mediately.

(FTC INVESTIGATORI: . . . . So, . . . it's 100 percent sure
thing?

M R. M ATTHEW S: . . . . Yeah, we have contracts with the
lender. W e don't go in and ask them to lower the rates. W e

purchase the rates up-front. So, for example, in your case, what

actually happened is your credit bureau, Equifax, called you since

you did meet the criteria in terms of the two requkements that we

have with the lenders in terms of our contract, that means your

payment history as well as your credit rating. So, because of that,

you were approved to have the zero percent rate. . . .

(llt depends on the lender that you're with, but being that you're
with Citi, they have the lowest industry rates in the United States

right now. So, it is a guaranteed zero percent rate.

(PX 2- 1, Attachment 135 to D7, 139 to D1 l .)

4. Defendants Reiterate Their Guarantees in Their W ritten M aterials.

A few days aûer the consumer is charged, Defendants send the consumer a written

package of materials that reiterates many of the same claims and guarantees Defendants made

during the initial telemarketing call. (PX 1-2 to PX 1-4; PX 1 -6 to PX 1-8; PX 1- l 0 to PX 1-12;

PX 1-14,' PX 1- l 6; PX 2-1, T 5 & Attachment B.)

materials that:

For example, Defendants state in their written

W e are a ftllly Licensed and Bonded agency specializing in skillful
debt reduction. Our financial consultants will negotiate on your

behalf with your creditors to reduce the high interest rates on your

unsecured debt; and we will help build you a Personalized Debt

Elimination Plan to get you out of debt three-to-five times faster

than your current rate, saving you many thousands in other wise

gsicl wasted interest payments!

(PX 1-3, Ex. A; PX 1-7, Ex. A; PX 1-8, Attachment A; PX 1- l4, Ex. A; PX 2-l , ! 5 &

Attachment B.) ln the package, Defendants also promise the same guaranteed savings that they
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told the consumer during the telemarketing call - i.e., Defendants guarantee in writing that the

consumer will save somewhere between $1,200 to $4,000 in one year with the lowered interest

rates that Defendants will obtain for the consumer or else the consumer will receive a full refund.

(1d.) Defendants' written materials also include several forms that ask the consumer to list all of

his or her credit card numbers, interest rates, issuing bank names, credit limits, balances, and

monthly payment amounts and to provide various types of personal financial information such as

the consumer's annual household income and whether the consumer has ever tiled for

bankruptcy. (f#.) Defendants ask the consumer to complete the forms with his or her personal
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or her credit cards, and agrees not to open any new credit cards during the repayment term . (Id. $

26.) Defendants, however, make crystal clear during their telemarketing calls that: (a) the

consumer must be current on his or her credit card payments in order to qualify for Defendants'

interest rate reduction program (PX 1-2,. PX 1-3; PX 2-1, Attachment A7; PX 3-3 at DOACS

000224); and (b) the consumer will not have to close their credit card accounts in order to

receive the lower interest rates promised by Defendants. (PX 1 -3,' PX 2- l , Attachment A23.)

Given these conditions, Defendants' claims of substantial savings and signifkantly reduced

interest rates are inherently false and deceptive because, regardless of the consumer's individual

economic, financial, credit, and personal circumstances, it is tttotally unrealistic'' that any bank

would agree to lower a typical consumer's interest rate down to as low as 0 to 6 percent
,

especially for consumers who are current on their payments and want to keep using credit cards.

Ms. Wilhelm's claims are consistent with the practices of one major credit card issuer -

Capital One. (PX 4-3.) Under Capital One's establis



disclose during their telemarketing calls.M oreover, Defendants are well aware of this fact given

that Defendants have a Iist posted at their telemarketing stations entitled iil3anks W e Can't W ork

With (We Can Still Qualify These Cardsl'' that lists several banks, including Capital One. (PX

3-3 at DOACS 000236.) Despite the existence of this list, in numerous instances Defendants

have collected thek fee from consumers seeking to reduce the interest rates on their Capital One

credit cards without ever disclosing the fact that Capital One will not work with Defendants on

any long-term interest rate reductions for a Capital One customer. (PX 1 -3,. PX 2- 1, Attachment

A13, Dl6.)

Defendants Rarelv Issue Refunds.

Once Defendants have failed to reduce the consumer'



funds in those accounts to pay numerous non-business expenses. For example
, Defendants' bank

records reveal more that more than $650,000 in cash has been withdrawn from Defendants'

corporate bank accounts via ATM transactions, withdrawals at bank teller windows, and checks

made out to kçcash.'' (/#. ! 10.) Defendants' corporate bank records also reveal more than

$1 30,000 in wke transfers to a bank account located overseas (id. T l 1) and $98,000 in repeated

and pervasive non-business expenditures for: restaurant meals, liquor store purchases
, gym



not file complaints against Defendants due to embarrassment. M oreover, nearly all of the

consumers who have filed complaints have reported r



it collected from West Vkginia consumers. (1d !! 1 7, 2 1.) The settlement was signed by Chris

Miano, as ûECEO'' of A+. (1d at 8.)

Similarly, on M arch 8, 2012, the State of M issouri filed a complaint against A+ and Clzris

M iano alleging that A+ and Chris M iano violated numerous provisions of M issouri's

telemarketing and do not call laws. (PX 3-4.) Specifically, the Missouri action alleges that,

since June 20 1 1, A+ and Chris Miano: (A) made numerous unsolicited calls to numerous

consumers in M issouri who had registered their telephone numbers on M issouri's No-call List;

and (B) during its telemarketing calls, A+ and Chris Miano failed to promptly disclose their

actual name, that the purpose of the call was to make a sale, and that the calls were being made

by a recorded voice communication. (1(i !! 20-31.) 



Case 2:12-cv-14373-DLG   Document 3   Entered on FLSD Docket 10/23/2012   Page 29 of 47



B. The FTC M eets the Standard for GrantinE a Government Aeencv's Request
for a Preliminarv Iniunction.

In considering a TRO or preliminary injunction under Section 1 3(b), this Court must: (1)

determine the likelihood that the FTC will ultimately succeed on the merits'
, and (2) balance the

equities. FFC v. Univ. HeaIth, Inc., 938 F.2d 1206, 12 l 7 (1 1th Cir. 1991). The FTC, unlike

private litigants, need not prove kreparable injury, which is presumed. 1d. at 1218. ln balancing

the equities, çtthe public interest should receive greater weight'' than any private interest. FFC v.

World Wide Factors, L td. , 882 F.2d 344, 347 (9th Cir. 1989); FFC v. World Travel Vacation

Brokers, Inc, 861 F.2d l 020, 1029 (7th Cir. 1988); FFC v. USA Beverages, lnc, No. 05-CV-

61682, 2005 WL 56542 19, at *8 (S.D. Fla. Dec. 6, 2005); see also FTC v. Mallett, 8 18 F. Supp.

2d 142, l49 (D.D.C. 20 l 1) (çç-f'he public interest in ensuring the enforcement of federal consumer

protection law is strong.''). As demonstrated below, an application of the above-mentioned two

prong test to the circumstances of this case warrants the issuance of a temporary restraining order



Defendants Have Violated the FTC Act.

The voluminous evidence attached to the FTC'S M otion demonstrates that Defendants

have violated Section 5(a) of the FTC Acts 1 5 U.S.C. j 45(a), which prohibits deceptive acts or

practices in or affecting commerce. An act or practice is deceptive if it involves a material

m isrepresentation or omission that is likely to mislead consumers acting reasonably under the

circumstances. FFC v. People Credit First, LLC, 244 Fed. Appx. 942, 944 (1 lth Cir. 201 1)

(following FTC v. Tashman, 31 8 F.3d 1273, 1277 (1 1th Cir. 2003)).



their claims. 1d.; Removatron 1nt '1 Corp. v. FFC, 884 F.2d 1489, 1498 (1st Cir. 1989).

The FTC need not prove that the misrepresentations were done with an intent to degaud

or deceive, or were made in bad faith. FrC v. Freecom Commc 'ns, Inc
, 40l F.3d 1 l 92, 1202

(10th Ck. 2005). Nor does the FTC need to show adual reliance by consumers; it is enough that

the representations were likely to be relied on by consumers acting reasonably under the

ckcumstances. Transnet Wireless, 506 F. Supp. 2d at



will be able to obtain lower interest rates on any credit card, regardless of the

bank that issued the credit card.

See supra Section ll.B.3. These representations are false because most credit card issuers will

not agree to lower a consumer's credit card interest rates at all or, at most, will only agree to a

very modest interest rate reduction that falls far short of the significantly low interest rates

9 S Section lI.B.6. Further, these misrepresentationsDefendants guarantee in thek calls. ee supra

are presumed to be material because they are llused to induce the purchase of a particular product

or service.'' RCA Credit Servs., 727 F. Supp. 2d at 1329 (citing Tashman, 318 F.3d at 1277)', see

also FTC v. SlimAmerica, Inc., 77 F. Supp. 2d 1263, 1272 (S.D. Fla. 1999). lndeed, Defendants'

m isrepresentations go to the vel'y heart of the cre



FTC will succeed in proving that Defendants' acts and practices are deceptive in violation of

Section 5(a) of the FTC Act.

Defendants Have Violated the TSR.

The evidence attached to the FTC'S M otion also demonstrates that Defendants have

violated numerous provisions of the TSR, which prohibits deceptive and abusive telemarketing

acts or practices by telemarketers and sellers.

First, Defendants' false representations that they can reduce the interest rates on

consumers' credit cards to between 0% and 6% regardless of the bank that issued the credit card

and save consumers $1 ,200 to $4,000 in interest payments in one year violate Parts

31 0.3(a)(2)(iii) and 3 l 0.3(a)(2)(x) of the TSR, which prohibits Defendant from

tûgmlisrepresenting, directly or by implication, in the sale of goods or services . . . (iii) galny

material aspect of the performance, efficacy, nature
, or central characteristics of goods or

services that are the subject of a sales offer (andq (x) (alny material aspect of any debt relief

service, including, but not Iimited to, the amount of money or the percentage of the debt amount

that a customer may save by using such service (andj the amount of time necessary to achieve

'' 16 C F R j 310.3(a)(2)(iii) & (x).1 1the represented results . . . . . . .

In addition, Defendants' pervasive practice of collecting an up-gont fee from the

consumer before they have obtained lowered credit card interest rates on the consumer's credit

cards (see supra Section I1.B.3) violates Part 310.4(a)(5)(i) of the TSR, which prohibits

Freecom Commc 'ns, 401 F.3d at 1206 (ûûl'he existence of a money-back guarantee is inadequate
as a matter of law to preclude consumer redress in a j 5 action'').

1 1 ' dit card interest rate reduction services constitute a tvdebt relief service
,
'' whichDefendants cre

is defined in the TSR as 6çany program or service represented, directly or by implication, to
renegotiate, settle, or in any way alter the tenns of payment or other tenns of the debt between a
person and one or more unsecured creditors . . 

. , including, but not limited to, a reduction in the .
. . interest rate . . . .'' 16 C.F.R. j 310.2(m).
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ûblrjequesting or receiving payment of any fee . . . for any debt relief service until and unless . . .

gtlhe seller or telemarketer has renegotiated, settled, reduced, or otherwise altered the terms of at

least one debt pursuant to a settlement agreement
, debt management plan, or other such valid

contractual agreement executed by the customer (andj gtlhe customer has made at least one

payment pursuant to that settlement agreement, debt management plan
, or other valid contractual

agreement between the customer and the creditor or debt collector 
. . . .'' 16 C.F.R. j

123l0.4(a)(5)(i).

Defendants have also violated the TSR by initiating
, or causing a telemarketer to initiate,

numerous telemarketing calls:

* to telephone numbers listed on the National Do Not Call Registry (see supra
Sections II.B.I & 8), in violation of 16 C.F.R. j 310.4(b)(1)(iii)(B)',

* that fail to provide an accurate caller identitk ation name and telephone number

(see supra Section Il.B.2), in violation of 16 C.F.R. j 310.4(a)(8)',

* that deliver prerecorded messages to consumers who had not previously provided

Defendants with an express written agreement authorizing the placement of

prerecorded calls to them (see supra Sections II.B.I & 8), in violation of l 6
C.F.R. j 310.4(b)(1)(v);

* that fail to disclose truthfully and promptly Defendants' true identity and that the

purpose of the call is to sell goods or services (see supra Section 1l.B.2), in
violation of 16 C.F.R. jj 3 l 0.4(b)(1)(v)(B)(ii) and 310.4(d); and

. without flrst paying the required annual fee for access to the National Do Not



The Equities Tip Decidedlv in the Public's Favor.

Given that the FTC has a strong likelihood of success on the merits
, injunctive relief is

warranted if the Court, weighing the equities, finds that relief is in the public interest. Here, the

balance of equities mandates entry of a TRO and preliminary injundion because the public

interest in preventing additional consumers from fa
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The TRO Should Enioin Defendants From Violatin: the FTC Act and
the TSR.

To prevent ongoing consumer injury, the Court should enter a TRO that immediately

prohibits Defendants from engaging in any conduct that violates the FTC Act or the TSR

including, but not limited to: (A) making misrepresentations concerning the provision of any

debt relief services, including the credit card interest rate reduction program that Defendants

market to consumers; (B) charging advance fees for debt relief services; (C) placing

telemarketing calls to persons whose numbers are listed on the National Do Not Call Registry'
,

(D) failing to transmit their telephone numbers and names to caller identitkation services; (E)

placing outbound telemarketing calls that deliver p



(S.D.N.Y. 2000). These requested prohibitions do no more than order that Defendants comply

with the FTC Act and the TSR. M oreover, because Defendants have continued their unlawful

business practices despite having notice that their activities are unlawf'ul through two state law

enforcement actions (see supra Section ll.C) and numerous complaints that consumers have filed

with the Better Business Bureau (PX 4- 1), immediate injunctive relief is necessary to proted

additional consumers from being harmed by Defendants' ongoing unlawful practices
.

Furthermore, the injunctive relief should extend not only to the corporate Defendants, A+

and Accelerated Accounting, but also to the individual Defendants
, Dana and Chris M iano. To

obtain injunctive relief against an individual defendant for a corporate defendant's unlawful acts

or practices, the FTC must show that the individual ttparticipated directly'' in those acts or

practices or had tkauthority to control'' the corporate defendant. See Gem Merch
., 87 F.3d at 470

(citing Amy Travel, 875 F.2d at 573)*, USA Fin., 4 15 Fed. Appx. at 974-75; FFC v. 1st Guar.

Mortgage Corp, No. 09-CV-61840, 20l 1 WL 1233207, at * 15 (S.D. Fla. Mar. 30, 201 l).

ççtAuthority to control the company can be evidenced by active involvement in business affairs

and the making of corporate policy, including assuming the duties of a corporate ofticer.''' FFC

v. Wilcox, 926 F. Supp. l 091, l 1 04 (S.D. Fla. 1995) (quoting Amy Travel, 875 F.2d at 573).

When an individual is a ûûcontrolling shareholder of (1 corporate defendants,'' a A6substantial

inference'' exists that the individual has ûtthe authority to control the deceptive acts and practices

carried on in the name of his corporations.'' Freecom Commc 'ns
, 401 F.3d at 1205*, see Transnet

Wireless Corp., 506 F. Supp. 2d at l 270 (11An individual's status as a corporate offker gives rise

to a presumption of ability to control a small, closely-held corporation.'). Furthermore, bank

signatory authority or acquiring services on behalf of a corporation also evidences authority to

control. USA Fin., 415 Fed. Appx. at 974-75.
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8. An asset freeze is appropriate once the Court determines that the FTC is likely to prevail on

the merits and restitution would be an appropriate final remedy. World Travel, 86l F.2d at 1031.

ççA party seeking an asset freeze must show a likelihood of dissipation of the claimed

assets, or other inability to recover monetary damages, if relief is not granted.'' Johnson v.

Couturier, 572 F.3d l 067, 1085 (9th Cir. 2009),. see SEC v. First Fin. Group of Fcx., 645 F.2d



M oreover, without an asset freeze, the dissipation and misuse of assets is likely.

Defendants who have engaged in fraudulent or other serious law violations are likely to waste

assets prior to resolution of the action. See M anor Nursing Ctrs., 58 F.2d at l 106. The FTC'S

experience in prior cases conflrms this, as numerous defendants in other cases who were

engaging in similarly serious unlawful practices have dissipated assets upon learning of an

impending law enforcement action. (Rule 65(B)(l) Certification of Federal Trade Commission

Counsel Bikram Bandy in Suppol't of Ex Parte M otion For A Temporary Restraining Order and

Motion To Temporarily Seal Docket and Entire File (ççBandy Certification''), !! 18-20.) In

addition, as previously indicated, Dana and Chris M iano have withdrawn over $650,000 in cash

from Defendants' corporate accounts, wired more than $130,000 in corporate funds to an

overseas bank account, and made over $98,000 in che



1 l 7 l (9th Cir. 1997); Amy Travel, 875 F.2d at 573.The knowledge element does not require the

FTC to prove subjective intent to defraud; rather, it may be satisfied by a showing of knowledge

of material misrepresentations, reckless indifference to such misrepresentations
, or an aw areness

of a high probability of deception along with an intentional avoidance of the truth. USA Fin.,

41 5 Fed. Appx. at 974 Lciting Orkin Exterminating Co. v. FFC, 849 F.2d l 354, 1368 (1 1th Cir.

l 988)); Publ 'g Clearing House, 1 04 F.3d at l 1 7 1 ; FFC v. FIN Promotions, Inc., No. 07-CV-

1279, 2008 WL 821937, at *2 (M.D. Fla. March 26, 2008); FTC v. Jordan Ashley, No. 93-CV-

2257, 1994 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 7494, at * 1 1 (S.D. Fla. Apr. 5, 1994). ln addition, participation in

corporate affairs is probative of knowledge. FTC v. Affordable Media, 179 F.3d 1228, 1235 (9th

Ck. 1999),. Amy Travel, 875 F.2d at 574.

Here, Clzris M iano undoubtedly knows of the material misrepresentations and unlawful

practices of A+ and Accelerated Accounting given his role as the general manager of A+ and

Accelerated Accounting and his active, day-to-day control and operation of those entities. (See

supra Section Il.A.2.) Likewise, given that Dana M iano is the sole corporate officer and owner



The TRO Should Appoint a Temporarv Receiver for the Corporate

Defendants.

The Court should also appoint a temporary receiver pursuant to the Court's equitable

powers under Section 1 3(b) of the FTC Act. U.S. Oil (f Gas, 748 F.2d at 1432. Appointment of

a temporary receiver is appropriate where, as here, there is ttimminent danger of property being

lost, injured, diminished in value or squandered, and where legal remedies are inadequate.''

f eone Indus. v. Assoc. Packaging, lnc., 795 F. Supp. 1 l 7
, 120 (D.N.J. l 992),. see id. When a

corporate defendant has used deception to obtain money from consumers
, ûlit is likely that, in the

absence of the appointment of a receiver to maintain the status quo
, the corporate assets will be



The TRO Should Grant Expedited Discoverv and lm mediate Access
to Defendants' Business Premises.

In order to locate assets wrongfully obtained from defrauded consumers
, the TRO should

authorize the FTC to engage in expedited discovery and allow the FTC and the temporary

receiver immediate access to Defendants' business premises and records. This relief is critical to

the FTC's, the receiver's, and the Court's ability to understand fully: (A) the scope of

Defendants' business operations, their financial status
, the participants involved, and their roles

in the scheme; (B) the fu11 range and extent of Defendants' law violations', (C) the identities of

injured consumers', (D) the total amount of consumer injury', and (E) the nature, extent, and

Iocation of Defendants' assets. M oreover, immediate access and limited expedited discovery are

also necessary to protect against evidence destruction. District courts have broad and flexible

authority in equity to depart from routine discovery procedures and applicable time frames
,

particularly in cases involving the public interest. See Fed. R. Civ. P. 26(d), 33(a), 34(b); Porter

n Warner Holding Co., 328 U.S. 395, 398 (1 946). Accordingly, the Court should enter a

temporary restraining order granting the FTC and the receiver immediate access and authorizing

limited expedited discovery.

The TRO Should be lssued Ex Parte.

The substantial risk of asset dissipation and document destruction in this case
, coupled

with Defendants' ongoing and deliberate statutory violations, justifies exparte relief without

notice. Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 65(b) permits this Court to enter ex parte orders upon a

clear showing that ttimmediate and kreparable injury, loss, or damage will result'' if notice is

given. Exparte orders are proper in cases where tûnotice to the defendant would render fruitless

the further prosecution of the action.'' Am . Can Co. v. Mansukhani, 742 F.2d 3 14, 322 (7th Cir.

1984); see also Granny Goose Foods, lnc. v. Bhd. ofTeamsters, 415 U.S. 423, 439 (1974); ln re
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Vuitton et Fils, S.A., 606 F.2d 1, 4-5 (2d Cir. l 979). ln cases involving pervasive fraud, ûûit gis)

proper to enter the TRO without notice, for giving notice itself may defeat the very purpose for

the TRO.'' Cenergy Corp. v. Blyson 011 (f Gas P.L.C., 657 F. Supp. 867, 870 (D. Nev. 1987).

M indful of this problem, this Court has regularly granted the FTC'S request for cx parte TROs in

Section 13(b) consumer fraud cases to preserve the possibility of full and effective final relief

See supra note 8.

As discussed above, Defendants' business operations are permeated by
, and reliant upon,

unlawful practices. (See supra Section lll.B.1) The FTC'S past experience has shown that

defendants engaged in gaudulent schemes often dissipate assets and destroy records if they

receive notice of an impending FTC enforcement action. (Bandy Certitkation, !! 1 8 - 20.) Such

a risk is particularly high here given that Dana and Chris M iano already appear to have a long

history of withdrawing large sums from Defendants' corporate bank accounts for their own

personal use (PX 2-2, !! 10 - 16) and the nature of Defendants' scheme is permeated by fraud.

Under these circumstances, there is a strong likelihood that Defendants would conceal or

dissipate assets absent ex parte relief. As such, it is in the interest ofjustice to provide the

requested exparte relief to prevent the dissipation of assets or the destruction of evidence
, which

in turn will maintain the status quo and preserve this Court's ability to award full and effective

final relietl

lV. CONCLUSION

For the above stated reasons, the FTC respectfully requests that the Court grant its

Motion and issue a temporary restraining order that enjoins Defendants from continuing thek

illegal practices, imposes an asset freeze on all Defendants
, appoints a temporary receiver for the

corporate Defendants, grants the FTC and the receiver immediate access to Defendants' business
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prem ises and records, authorizes limited expedited discovery, and orders Defendants to show

cause why a preliminary injunction should not issue. Such exparte emergency injunctive relief

is necessary to protect consum ers from further harm and to help ensure the possibility of

effective final relief for the victims of Defendants' unlawful telemarketing scheme.

Respectfully subm itted,

W ILLARD K. TOM


